City of Coral Gables

405 Biltmore Way Coral Gables, FL 33134 www.coralgables.com



Meeting Minutes

Tuesday, October 25, 2022

9:00 AM

City Hall, Commission Chambers

City Commission

Mayor Vince Lago Vice Mayor Michael Mena Commissioner Rhonda Anderson Commissioner Jorge L. Fors, Jr. Commissioner Kirk R. Menendez

Peter J. Iglesias, P.E., City Manager Miriam Soler Ramos, City Attorney Billy Y. Urquia, City Clerk The City of Coral Gables will be holding its Regular Meeting on Tuesday, October 25, 2022, commencing at 9:00 a.m.

Members of the public may participate in person, but are also able to participate via the Zoom platform. Members of the public may join the meeting via Zoom at (https://zoom.us/j/3054466800). In addition, a dedicated phone line will be available so that any individual who does not wish (or is unable) to use Zoom may listen to and participate in the meeting by dialing: (305) 461-6769 Meeting ID: 3054466800. To speak prior to the City Commission taking action on an Agenda Item, please "Raise your Hand" or send a message to one of the meeting hosts using the Zoom Platform. If you joined the meeting via telephone, you can "Raise your Hand" by pressing *9.

The public mav comment on an item the agenda usina the Citv's on already-established e-comment function which may be found on the City's website at: (www.coralgables.com/commissionmeetings) once the meeting's agenda is published or by sending an email to cityclerk@coralgables.com prior to the start of the meeting.

The Meeting will also be broadcasted live for members of the public to view on the City's website (www.coralgables.com/cgtv) as well as Channel 77 on Comcast.

Judging of the Annual Great Pumpkin Challenge

CALL TO ORDER

The Meeting was called to order at 9:01 a.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: 5 - Commissioner Anderson, Commissioner Fors Jr., Vice Mayor Mena, Commissioner Menendez and Mayor Lago

LEGISLATIVE SUMMARY

The following minutes summary includes all presentations made, and actions taken which is supplemented by the following exhibits on file in the Office of the City Clerk, and which are hereby made a part of the record herein: (a) Ordinance(s) adopted (Ordinance No. 2022-59 and Ordinance No. 2022-65) (b) Resolution(s) adopted (Resolution No. 2022-262 through Resolution No. 2022-274); (c) Video; (d) Audio Recording; (e) Minutes Folder with Agenda and background information, including items which were submitted at the meeting.

INVOCATION

Imelys Sansores from the City Clerk's Office gave the Invocation.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Commissioner Menendez led the Pledge of Allegiance

A. PRESENTATIONS AND PROTOCOL DOCUMENTS

A.-1. 22-4660 Congratulations to Bachour on receiving the Keep Coral Gables Beautiful 2022 Commercial Beautification Award.

Mayor Lago introduced Agenda Item A-1: Congratulations to Bachour on receiving the Keep Coral Gables Beautiful 2022 Commercial Beautification Award. Lopez, Administrative Assistant to the City Manager, Matthew Anderson-Resiliency and Sustainability Manager - Public Works Department, Belkys Perez, Interim Acting Economic Development Director, and Mark Trowbridge, President and CEO Coral Gables Chamber of Commerce made the presentation to the third winner to receive this award. Ms. Lopez showed a PowerPoint presentation of how Bachour beautifully keep their business inside and outside immaculately clean. Ms. Perez thanked Mr. Miguel Alfaro, the recipient for his work in showing attention to detail, cleanliness, large patronage and encouraged him to keep up the good work in serving as an example to others. Mr. Trowbridge thanked Mr. Alfaro and his team at Bachour for the wonderful work they do in serving as an example for the city's downtown and commented on their delicious deserts and look forward to honoring

these great organizations who have risen to the challenge and thanked him. Mr. Alfaro stated that on behalf of Chef Antonino Bachour and the team, he feels humbled, grateful, and thankful to the City of Coral Gables for the recognition in receiving the Commercial Beautification award and closed with the sentiments to keep Coral Gables beautiful. Mayor Lago thanked him and spoke of the numerous times a week he visits that establishment for both business and family time, and complimented him for having a first-class business, excellent food and setting the bar of excellence at a level that all businesses should aspire to, and he has used their business as an example on many occasions. Additionally, he thanked his team, as well as the owners of the commercial portion of the building who always exhibits the highest standards that is characteristic of Coral Gables. Mr. Anderson congratulated and presented Mr. Alfaro with the award which portrayed a picture of the picturesque front of Bachour, and Ms. Lopez presented him with a sticker to proudly display on the window of his business.

This Presentation/Protocol Document was Presented and Filed

City Clerk Item No. 1

A.-2. 22-4683

Congratulations to Operator Tania Mateu, recipient of the City of Coral Gables "Operator of the Second Quarter Award," for the months of April through June 2022.

<u>Attachments:</u> COMMISSION COVER MEMO - OPERATOR OF THE SECOND QUARTER 2022 Operator of the 2nd Quarter 2022 - T.Mateu.pdf

Mayor Lago introduced Agenda Item A-2 Congratulations to Operator Tania Mateu, recipient of the City of Coral Gables "Operator of the Second Quarter Award," for the months of April through June 2022, and Police Chief Edward J. Hudak made the Police Chief Hudak stated that the Communications Operators are presentation. oftentimes the unsung heroes in the Police Department, and reflected on when he answered 911 calls many years ago and how unnerving it was in not knowing what type of call he would be answering whenever the phone rang. He continued by saying that Communications Operator Tania Mateu has been with the city since 2011 and continues to be one of their strongest employees within the division. She has played a significant role in working relentlessly in training new recruits and doing an exceptional job and sees nothing but a brighter future for her as one of the future leaders within the department. Police Chief Hudak presented her with her award and thanked her for keeping the residents and officers safe, and the training she provides. Communications Officer Mateu thanked the Mayor and City Commission. Lago thanked her on behalf of the City Commission and citizens, as well as her team for all they do every day, and that they are the unsung heroes.

This Presentation/Protocol Document was Presented and Filed

B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

None

City Clerk Item No. 3

C. PUBLIC COMMENTS

City Clerk Item No. 4

D. MAYOR'S COMMENTS

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-262

Non 22-4923 Agenda Item A Resolution of the City Commission of the City of Coral Gables, Florida directing the City Manager to move forward with the construction of sidewalks on Venetia Terrace and Columbus Boulevard and to fund said project in the next budget year.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF CORAL GABLES, FLORIDA DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO MOVE FORWARD WITH THE CONSTRUCTION OF SIDEWALKS ON VENETIA TERRACE AND COLUMBUS BOULEVARD AND TO FUND SAID PROJECT IN THE NEXT BUDGET YEAR.

A motion was made by Commissioner Anderson, seconded by Commissioner Menendez, that this motion be adopted by Resolution Number 2022-262. The motion passed by unanimous vote.

Yeas: 5 - Commissioner Anderson, Commissioner Fors, Jr., Vice Mayor Mena, Commissioner Menendez and Mayor Lago

City Clerk Item No. 5

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-263

Non 22-4924 Agenda Item A Resolution of the City Commission amending previously adopted Resolution No. 2022-207 in support of the City of Coral Gables first annual Mayor's Ball will all monetary contributions and ultimate proceeds being administered by La Liga Contra el Cancer.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION AMENDING PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED RESOLUTION NO. 2022-207 IN SUPPORT OF THE CITY OF CORAL GABLES FIRST ANNUAL MAYOR'S BALL WILL ALL MONETARY CONTRIBUTIONS AND ULTIMATE PROCEEDS BEING ADMINISTERED BY LA LIGA CONTRA EL CANCER.

A motion was made by Commissioner Anderson, seconded by Commissioner Menendez, that this motion be adopted by Resolution Number 2022-263. The motion passed by unanimous vote.

Yeas: 5 - Commissioner Anderson, Commissioner Fors, Jr., Vice Mayor Mena, Commissioner Menendez and Mayor Lago

E. CONSENT AGENDA

Passed the Consent Agenda

A motion was made by Commissioner Anderson, seconded by Commissioner Menendez to Approve the Consent Agenda as presented.

Yeas: 5 - Commissioner Anderson, Commissioner Fors, Jr., Vice Mayor Mena, Commissioner Menendez and Mayor Lago

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-264

E.-1. 22-4859

A Resolution of the City Commission authorizing ServiCorp, LLC to sell alcoholic beverages on Alhambra from Ponce de Leon to LeJune Road on Saturday, February 4th, 2023, from 12:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. and Sunday, February 5th, 2023, from 12:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. during the Supercars in the Gables event. Subject to Florida Department of Professional Regulation Requirements.

Attachments: Supercars app 2023

Supercars in the Gables 23 RESO
Supercars in the Gables 23
R-2022-264 Signed

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION AUTHORIZING SERVICORP, LLC TO SELL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES ON ALHAMBRA FROM PONCE DE LEON TO LEJUNE ROAD ON SATURDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2023, FROM 12:00 P.M. TO 8:00 P.M. AND SUNDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2023, FROM 12:00 P.M. TO 7:00 P.M., DURING THE "SUPERCARS IN THE GABLES EVENT". SUBJECT TO FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF PROFESSIONAL REGULATION REQUIREMENTS.

This Matter was adopted by Resolution Number 2022-264 BY VOICE VOTE

City Clerk Item No. 7

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-265

E.-2. 22-4888

A Resolution of the City Commission accepting the recommendation to waive the competitive process of the procurement code for all purchases related to the parking garage fees for the Adult Activity Center activities as Special Procurement/Bid Waiver, pursuant to Section 2-691 of the City's Procurement Code.

Attachments: aac parking reso

aac parking waiver R-2022-265 Signed

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION **ACCEPTING** THE Α WAIVE THE RECOMMENDATION TO COMPETITIVE PROCESS OF THE **PROCUREMENT** CODE **FOR ALL PURCHASES RELATED** TO THE PARKING GARAGE FEES FOR THE ADULT ACTIVITY CENTER ACTIVITIES AS SPECIAL PROCUREMENT/BID WAIVER, PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-691 OF THE CITY'S PROCUREMENT CODE.

This Matter was adopted by Resolution Number 2022-265 BY VOICE VOTE

City Clerk Item No. 8

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-266

E.-3. 22-4897

A Resolution of the City Commission approving the IT Department to purchase a GIS Enterprise License Agreement (ELA) from ESRI, the existing vendor of GIS applications, services, and support for Coral Gables.

<u>Attachments:</u> CoverMemo2022

Resolution

Renewal2022CoralGables

Quotation

SoleSourceAttestation2019
Agreement-executed
R-2022-266 - Signed

RESOLUTION Α OF THE CITY COMMISSION **ACCEPTING** THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE PROCUREMENT OFFICER AUTHORIZING AN ENTERPRISE LICENSE **AGREEMENT** WITH ESRI, INC., FOR THE PURCHASE OF CITY-WIDE ACCESS AND UNLIMITED DEPLOYMENT OF GIS PRODUCTS AND SERVICES PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-689, SOLE SOURCE PROCUREMENT OF THE PROCUREMENT CODE.

This Matter was adopted by Resolution Number 2022-266 BY VOICE VOTE

City Clerk Item No. 9

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-267

E.-4. <u>22-4900</u>

A Resolution of the City Commission appointing Giovanni Castro (Nominated by Mayor Lago) to serve as a member of the Mayor's Advisory Council, for remainder of the current term, which began on August 26, 2022 and continues through April 28, 2023.

<u>Attachments:</u> Draft Resolution - Giovanni Castro - Mayor's Council

Cover Memo - Giovanni Castro - Mayor's Council

R-2022-267 - Signed

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION APPOINTING GIOVANNI CASTRO (NOMINATED BY MAYOR LAGO) TO SERVE AS A MEMBER OF THE MAYOR'S ADVISORY COUNCIL, FOR REMAINDER OF THE CURRENT TERM, WHICH BEGAN ON AUGUST 26, 2022 AND CONTINUES THROUGH APRIL 28, 2023.

This Matter was adopted by Resolution Number 2022-267 BY VOICE VOTE

1. Presentation of Boards and/or Committees minutes requesting no action from the City Commission:

1.-1. 22-4767 Advisory Board on Disability Affairs Meeting of September 7, 2022.

Attachments: 09 07 22 Meeting Mins

Cov Memo mins 09 07 22

CITY CLERK OFC Attendance Form 09 07 22

ADA 09 07 22 Agenda

This Matter was approved BY VOICE VOTE

City Clerk Item No. 11

1.-2. 22-4810 Budget Audit Advisory Board Meeting of October 4, 2022.

Attachments: Budget Audit Board Minutes - PENDING Board Approval - 10.04.22 FINAL

This Matter was approved BY VOICE VOTE

City Clerk Item No. 12

1.-3. 22-4858 Economic Development Board Meeting of October 3, 2022.

<u>Attachments:</u> <u>EDB Meeting of October 3, 2022</u>

This Matter was approved BY VOICE VOTE

City Clerk Item No. 13

1.-4. 22-4809 Landscape Beautification Advisory Board Meeting of September 8, 2022.

Attachments: 090822-LBAB Minutes

This Matter was approved BY VOICE VOTE

City Clerk Item No. 14

1.-5. 22-4841 Mayor's Citizens Advisory Council Meeting of June 22, 2022.

Attachments: Minutes

This Matter was approved BY VOICE VOTE

City Clerk Item No. 15

1.-6. 22-4898 School Community Relations Committee Meeting of September 16, 2022.

Attachments: Cover Memo

Draft Minutes-SCRC Sept. Meeting

This Matter was approved BY VOICE VOTE

1.-7. 22-4788 Senior Citizens Advisory Board Meeting of September 1, 2022.

Attachments: Senior Meeting Mintues 9.1.22

This Matter was approved BY VOICE VOTE

City Clerk Item No. 17

1.-8. 22-4839 Sustainability Advisory Board Meeting of September 27, 2022.

Attachments: 9-27-2022 SAB meeting minutes DRAFT 2 AJ

This Matter was approved BY VOICE VOTE

City Clerk Item No. 18

2. Presentation of Boards and/or Committees draft/final minutes requesting action from the City Commission [Note: A vote to accept the minutes does not mean approval of the substance within the minutes]:

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-268

2.-1. 22-4896

A Resolution of the International Affairs Coordinating Council expressing their desire for the Coral Gables City Commission to establish a Sister City relationship with the city of Stellenbosch, South Africa.

Attachments: 10.25.22 Stellenbosch Resolution

10.25.22 Stellenbosch-Commission Cover

20220805 - MAYOR VAN DEVENTER TO MAYOR LAGO SISTER CITY [11.2.5.

R-2022-268 - Signed

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION GRANTING THE REQUEST OF THE INTERNATIONAL AFFAIRS COORDINATING COUNCIL TO ESTABLISH A SISTER CITY RELATIONSHIP WITH THE CITY OF STELLENBOSCH, SOUTH AFRICA.

A motion was made by Commissioner Menendez, seconded by Commissioner Anderson, that this matter be adopted by Resolution Number 2022-268. The motion passed by the following vote.

Yeas: 5 - Commissioner Anderson, Commissioner Fors, Jr., Vice Mayor Mena, Commissioner Menendez and Mayor Lago

F. PUBLIC HEARINGS

ORDINANCES ON SECOND READING

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-59

F.-1. 22-4781

An Ordinance of the City Commission authorizing the City to enter into a Lease with Francesco Miracle Miles, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, d/b/a Francesco Restaurant with regard to the City-owned property 278 Miracle Mile, Coral Gables, FL 33134 for a period of seven (7) years and with two (2) additional, five-year renewal options, at the City's discretion; providing for a repealer provision, severability clause, and providing for an effective date.

<u>Attachments:</u> 9-14-22 PAB Meeting Minutes

Commission Cover - 10.11.22 (278 Miracle Mile Francesco Lease)

<u>Lease 278 Miracle Mile Francesco Miracle Miles, LLC</u>
<u>Ordinance - 10.11.22 (278 Miracle Mile Francesco Lease)</u>

10-3-22 EDB Meeting Minutes DRAFT

Budget Audit Board Minutes - PENDING Board Approval - 10.04.22 FINAL

Commission Cover - 10.25.22 (278 Miracle Mile Francesco Lease)

Ordinance - 10.25.22 (278 Miracle Mile Francesco Lease)

O-2022-59 - Signed

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO A LEASE WITH FRANCESCO MIRACLE MILES, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, DBA FRANCESCO RESTAURANT WITH REGARD TO THE CITY-OWNED PROPERTY 278 MIRACLE MILE, CORAL GABLES, FL 33134 FOR A PERIOD OF SEVEN (7) YEARS AND WITH TWO (2) ADDITIONAL, FIVE-YEAR RENEWAL OPTIONS, AT THE CITY'S DISCRETION; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER PROVISION, SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

A motion was made by Commissioner Anderson, seconded by Commissioner Menendez, that this matter be approved as an Ordinance on First Reading. The motion passed by the following vote.

Yeas: 5 - Commissioner Fors, Jr., Vice Mayor Mena, Commissioner Menendez, Commissioner Anderson and Mayor Lago

F.-2. 22-4331

An Ordinance of the City Commission providing for a text amendment to the City of Coral Gables official Zoning Code by revising Article 15 "Notices", Section 15-102 "Notice", Subsection C "Mail Notices" providing that when a notice radius extends outside of the City limits, notice shall be mailed outside of the City limits only to addresses that are within a five hundred (500) foot radius of the property that is subject of the application; providing for severability clause, repealer provision, codification, and providing for an effective date.

Attachments: 09 14 22 - PZB Staff Report re Notice w attachments

10 11 22 CC - Notice

Exhibit A - Draft Ordinance - notice outside of city boundary 500 ft

Exhibit B - 09 14 22 - Staff Report - Notice w attachments
Exhibit C - Excerpts from 09 14 22 PZB Meeting Minutes

10 11 22 CC - Notice

10 11 2 Exhibit A - Draft Ordinance - notice outside of city boundary 500 ft

10 11 22 Exhibit B - 09 14 22 - Staff Report - Notice w attachments 10 11 22 Exhibit C - Excerpts from 09 14 22 PZB Meeting Minutes

10 25 22 CC - Notice requirements - 2nd Reading 10 25 22 Exh. A - Notice Requirements Draft Ordinance

O-2022-60 - Signed

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF CORAL GABLES, FLORIDA PROVIDING FOR A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE CITY OF CORAL GABLES OFFICIAL ZONING CODE BY REVISING ARTICLE 15 "NOTICES", SECTION 15-102 "NOTICE", SUBSECTION C "MAIL NOTICES" PROVIDING THAT WHEN A NOTICE RADIUS EXTENDS OUTSIDE OF THE CITY LIMITS, NOTICE SHALL BE MAILED OUTSIDE OF THE CITY LIMITS ONLY TO ADDRESSES THAT ARE WITHIN A FIVE HUNDRED (500) FOOT RADIUS OF THE PROPERTY THAT IS THE SUBJECT OF THE APPLICATION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, REPEALER, CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

A motion was made by Vice Mayor Mena, seconded by Commissioner Menendez, that this matter be adopted by Ordinance Number 2022-60. The motion passed by the following vote.

Yeas: 5 - Vice Mayor Mena, Commissioner Menendez, Commissioner Anderson, Commissioner Fors, Jr. and Mayor Lago

F.-3. 22-4483

An Ordinance of the City Commission amending the City of Coral Gables Code, Chapter 2 "Administration", Article VIII "Procurement Code", Section 2-696 "Procedure to Provide Preference to Coral Gables-Based Vendors in Contracts for Goods and General Services" to add a preference for Miami-Dade County-Based Vendors, define principal place of business and expand and clarify the preference in competitive bids, providing for a repealer provision, severability clause, codification, and providing for an effective date. (Sponsored by Mayor Lago)

Attachments: Sec. 2 696. Procedure to provide preference - 0922

Cover Memo First Reading Ordinance Local Preference 9-28 Sponsored by Mayo Ordinance First Reading Section 2 696 Local Preference Sponsored by Mayor Lac Ordinance Second Reading Section 2 696 Local Preference Sponsored by Mayor Cover Memo Second Reading Ordinance Local Preference 10-25 Sponsored by O-2022-61 -Signed Verbatim Transcript

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION AMENDING THE CITY OF CORAL **GABLES** CODE, CHAPTER 2 "ADMINISTRATION", ARTICLE VIII "PROCUREMENT CODE", **SECTION** 2-696 "PROCEDURE TO **PROVIDE** PREFERENCE TO CORAL GABLES-BASED VENDORS IN **CONTRACTS** FOR GOODS AND GENERAL SERVICES" TO ADD A PREFERENCE FOR MIAMI-DADE COUNTY-BASED VENDORS, DEFINE PRINCIPAL PLACE **BUSINESS** AND **EXPAND AND CLARIFY** THE **PREFERENCE** IN COMPETITIVE BIDS **PROVIDING** FOR Α **REPEALER** PROVISION, SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

A motion was made by Commissioner Anderson, seconded by Commissioner Menendez, that this matter be adopted by Ordinance Number 2022-61. The motion passed by the following vote.

Yeas: 5 - Commissioner Menendez, Commissioner Anderson, Commissioner Fors, Jr., Vice Mayor Mena and Mayor Lago

F.-4. 22-4581

An Ordinance of the City Commission approving the vacation of a public alleyway pursuant to Zoning Code Article 14, "Process," Section 14-211, "Abandonment and Vacations" and City Code Chapter 62, Article 8, "Vacation, Abandonment and Closure of Streets, Easements and Alleys by Private Owners and the City; Application Process," providing for the vacation of the north-south public alleyway lying between lots 9-16 and lots 8 & 17, Block 97, Coral Gables Riviera Section #2, according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 28, Page 18 of the Public Records of Miami-Dade County, Florida; providing for substitute utility easement, setting forth terms and conditions; providing for a severability clause, repealer provision, and providing for an effective date.

Attachments: 09 14 22 PZB staff report - Amalfi Alley w attachments

10 11 22 CC - Amalfi Alley Vacation

10 11 22 Exhibit A - Draft Ordinance - Alley Vacation

10 11 22 Exhibit B - PZB Staff Report - Amalfi Allev w attachments

10 11 22 Exhibit C - Excerpts from 09 14 22 PZB Meeting Minutes

10 11 22 Exhibit D - PowerPoint Presentation

10 25 22 Exh. A - Amalfi Alley Vacation - Ordinance

10 25 22 CC - Amalfi Alley Vacation - 2nd Reading

O-2022-62 - Signed

Verbatim Transcript

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF CORAL APPROVING THE VACATION OF A PUBLIC ALLEYWAY PURSUANT TO ZONING CODE ARTICLE 14. "PROCESS." SECTION "ABANDONMENT AND VACATIONS" AND CITY CODE CHAPTER ARTICLE 8, "VACATION, ABANDONMENT AND CLOSURE OF STREETS, EASEMENTS AND ALLEYS BY PRIVATE OWNERS AND THE APPLICATION PROCESS," PROVIDING FOR THE VACATION THE NORTH-SOUTH PUBLIC ALLEYWAY LYING BETWEEN LOTS 8 & 17. BLOCK 97. CORAL GABLES RIVIERA SECTION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 28, PAGE 18 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR SUBSTITUTE UTILITY EASEMENT, SETTING FORTH TERMS AND CONDITIONS: PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (LEGAL DESCRIPTION ON FILE)

A motion was made by Commissioner Anderson, seconded by Commissioner Menendez, that this matter be adopted by Ordinance Number 2022-62. The motion passed by the following vote.

Yeas: 5 - Commissioner Anderson, Commissioner Fors, Jr., Vice Mayor Mena, Commissioner Menendez and Mayor Lago

F.-5. 22-4732

An Ordinance of the City Commission amending the City of Coral Gables Code, Chapter 10 "Animals", Article II "Dogs", Section 10-33 "Dogs Running at Large Prohibited; Leashes Required; Penalty for Violation of Article" to add an exemption from the leash provision for dogs within posted and designated off-leash dog parks and facilities, providing for a repealer provision, severability clause, codification, and providing for an effective date.

Attachments:

Cover Memo First Reading Ordinance Off-Leash in Dog Parks 9-28

First Reading ordinance off leash dog parks 10-33 9-28 Commission Meeting
Cover Memo Second Reading Ordinance Off-Leash in Dog Parks 10-25

Second Reading ordinance off leash dog parks 10-33 10-25 Commission Meeting
O-2022-63 - Signed

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION AMENDING THE CITY OF CORAL GABLES CODE, CHAPTER 10 "ANIMALS", ARTICLE II "DOGS", SECTION 10-33 "DOGS RUNNING AT LARGE PROHIBITED; LEASHES REQUIRED; PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF ARTICLE" TO ADD AN EXEMPTION FROM THE LEASH PROVISION FOR DOGS WITHIN POSTED AND DESIGNATED OFF-LEASH DOG PARKS AND FACILITIES, PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER PROVISION, SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

A motion was made by Commissioner Anderson, seconded by Commissioner Menendez, that this matter be adopted by Ordinance Number 2022-63. The motion passed by the following vote.

Yeas: 5 - Commissioner Fors, Jr., Vice Mayor Mena, Commissioner Menendez, Commissioner Anderson and Mayor Lago

Agenda Items F-6 and F-7 are related

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-64

F.-6. <u>22-4582</u>

An Ordinance of the City Commission providing for a text amendment to the City of Coral Gables Official Zoning Code by amending Article 2, "Zoning Districts," Section 2-102, "Multi-Family 1 Duplex (MF1) District," to modify and clarify provisions related to garages and driveways; providing for a repealer provision, severability clause, codification, and providing for an effective date.

Attachments: 09 14 22 PZB Staff Report - MF-1 Driveway Visibility Triangle w attachments

10 11 22 CC - Driveways Convex Mirror 1st Reading

10 11 22 Exhibit A Draft Ordinance - Driveways

10 11 22 Exhibit B Draft Ordinance - Convex Mirror

10 11 22 Exhibit C 2022 09 14 PZB Staff Report - MF-1 Driveway Visibility Triang

10 11 22 Exhibit D Excerpt 09 14 22 Minutes

10 25 22 CC - Driveways Convex Mirror - 2nd Reading

10 25 22 Exh. A - Driveways Draft Ordinance

10 25 22 Exh. B - Convex Mirror Draft Ordinance

O-2022-64 - Signed Verbatim Transcript

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION PROVIDING FOR A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE CITY OF CORAL GABLES OFFICIAL ZONING CODE BY AMENDING ARTICLE 2, "ZONING DISTRICTS," SECTION 2-102, "MULTI-FAMILY 1 DUPLEX (MF1) DISTRICT," TO MODIFY AND CLARIFY PROVISIONS RELATED TO GARAGES AND DRIVEWAYS; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER PROVISION, SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, CODIFICATION, AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

A motion was made by Vice Mayor Mena, seconded by Commissioner Menendez, that this matter be adopted by Ordinance Number 2022-64. The motion passed by the following vote.

Yeas: 5 - Vice Mayor Mena, Commissioner Menendez, Commissioner Anderson, Commissioner Fors, Jr. and Mayor Lago

F.-7. 22-4583

An Ordinance of the City Commission providing for a text amendment to the City of Coral Gables Official Zoning Code by amending Article 10, "Parking and Access," Section 10-106, "Visibility Triangle" to modify and clarify provisions related to convex mirror; providing for a repealer provision, severability clause, codification, and providing for an effective date.

Attachments: 09 14 22 PZB Staff Report - MF-1 Driveway Visibility Triangle w attachments

10 11 22 CC - Driveways Convex Mirror 1st Reading 10 11 22 Exhibit A Draft Ordinance - Driveways

10 11 22 Exhibit B Draft Ordinance - Convex Mirror

10 11 22 Exhibit C 2022 09 14 PZB Staff Report - MF-1 Driveway Visibility Triang

10 11 22 Exhibit D Excerpt 09 14 22 Minutes
10 25 22 Exh. A - Driveways Draft Ordinance
10 25 22 Exh. B - Convex Mirror Draft Ordinance
10 25 22 CC - Driveways Convex Mirror - 2nd Reading

O-2022-65 - Signed Verbatim Transcript

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION PROVIDING FOR A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE CITY OF CORAL GABLES OFFICIAL ZONING CODE BY AMENDING ARTICLE 10, "PARKING AND ACCESS," SECTION 10-106, "VISIBILITY TRIANGLE" TO MODIFY AND CLARIFY PROVISIONS RELATED CONVEX MIRROR; **PROVIDING** FOR Α REPEALER PROVISION. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, CODIFICATION, **AND** PROVIDING FOR EFFECTIVE DATE.

A motion was made by Vice Mayor Mena, seconded by Commissioner Menendez, that this matter be adopted by Ordinance Number 2022-65. The motion passed by the following vote.

Yeas: 5 - Commissioner Menendez, Commissioner Anderson, Commissioner Fors, Jr., Vice Mayor Mena and Mayor Lago

ORDINANCES ON FIRST READING

F.-8. 22-4842

An Ordinance of the City Commission amending Chapter 78 "Utilities", Article I "In General" Section 78-1 "Utility Easement" and Article VI "Underground Utilities" Sections 78-280 Through 78-282 of the Code of Ordinances, by requiring attaching entities to underground and remove co-located facilities, requiring pole-owners to remove redundant utility poles, providing for procedures related to major hardening projects, and requiring property owners to cooperate and comply with access to utility easements, access to property, and location of facilities, providing for severability clause, repealer provision, codification, and providing for an effective date.

Attachments: Exhibit to Ordinance re Redundant Poles Easements and Access FINAL

Redundant Poles Easements and Access ordinance FINAL 10.17

Cover Memo re Redundant Poles Easements and Access HGedits1 - MSR edits

Redundant Poles Easements and Access ordinance second rding

Exhibit to Ordinance re Redundant Poles Easements and Access 2nd reading

Cover Memo re Redundant Poles Easements and Access 2nd reading

A motion was made by Commissioner Anderson, seconded by Commissioner Menendez, that this matter be approved as an Ordinance on First Reading. The motion passed by the following vote.

Yeas: 5 - Commissioner Anderson, Commissioner Fors, Jr., Vice Mayor Mena, Commissioner Menendez and Mayor Lago

City Clerk Item No. 27

RESOLUTIONS

Time Certain 10:30am (Agenda Item F-9)

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-272

F.-9. 22-4291

A Resolution of the City Commission approving receipt of Transfer of Development Rights (TDRs) pursuant to Zoning Code Article 14, "Process," Section 14-204.6, "Review and approval of use of TDRs on receiver sites," for the receipt and use of TDRs for a Mixed-Use project referred to as "1505 Ponce" on the property legally described as Lots 1 through 6 and Lots 17 through 22, Block 36, "Douglas Section" (1505 Ponce de Leon Boulevard, 126 and 122 Menores Avenue), Coral Gables, Florida; including required conditions; providing for a repealer provision, severability clause, and providing for an effective date.

Attachments: 10 12 2022 Staff Report 1505 Ponce TDRs w attachments

10 25 22 Exh. A - 1505 Ponce TDRs - Draft Resolution

10 25 22 Exh. B - 10 12 22 1505 Ponce PZB Staff Report w attachments

10 25 22 Exh. C - Meeting Minutes Excerpt from 10 12 22 PZB

10 25 22 CC Cover Memo - 1505 Ponce TDRs

10 25 22 Exh. D - 10 19 22 HPB Report TDR 2022-007 - 1505 Ponce

10 25 22 Exh. E - PowerPoint Presentation

R-2022-272 - Signed

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION APPROVING RECEIPT OF TRANSFER OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS (TDRS) PURSUANT TO ZONING CODE ARTICLE 14, "PROCESS," SECTION 14-204.6, "REVIEW

APPROVAL OF USE OF TDRS ON RECEIVER SITES," FOR THE RECEIPT AND USE OF TDRS FOR A MIXED-USE PROJECT REFERRED TO AS "1505 PONCE" ON THE PROPERTY LEGALLY **DESCRIBED** AS LOTS THROUGH 6 AND LOTS 17 THROUGH 22, BLOCK 36. "DOUGLAS SECTION" (1505 PONCE DE LEON BOULEVARD, 126 AND 122 MENORES AVENUE). CORAL GABLES. FLORIDA: INCLUDING REQUIRED CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER PROVISION, SEVERABILITY AND **PROVIDING** FOR ΑN **EFFECTIVE** CLAUSE, DATE. (LEGAL **DESCRIPTION ON FILE)**

A motion was made by Commissioner Anderson, seconded by Commissioner Menendez, that this matter be adopted by Resolution Number 2022-272. The motion passed by the following vote.

Yeas: 4 - Commissioner Fors, Jr., Vice Mayor Mena, Commissioner Menendez and

Commissioner Anderson

Abstentions: 1 - Mayor Lago

City Clerk Item No. 35

G. CITY COMMISSION ITEMS

G.-1. <u>22-4890</u> Discussion regarding a Residential Parking Permit Program.

(Sponsored by Commissioner Anderson)

This Agenda Item was Deferred

City Clerk Item No. 28

G.-2. <u>22-4891</u> Discussion regarding Valencia traffic flow and speed.

(Sponsored by Commissioner Anderson)

Attachments: Picture

This Agenda Item was Discussed and Filed

City Clerk Item No. 29

G.-3. 22-4892 Dover Kohl Up-Date and availability of preliminary bike lane recommendations to Mobility

Hub east and west of LeJeune from Anderson to Ponce.

(Sponsored by Commissioner Anderson)

This Agenda Item was Discussed and Filed

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-274

G.-4. 22-4845

A Resolution of the City Commission approving license agreement with 1505 Ponce SPE, LLC for the operation of a temporary City-Operated dog park located on the site for the proposed 1505 Ponce de Leon project. (Sponsored by Commissioner Anderson)

Attachments: 1505 Ponce License Agreement 10-18

Cover Memo 1505 License Agreement

Resolution approving License Agreement 1505 Ponce 10-25 Commission meeting

1505 Ponce Ave Dog Park- SITE

R-2022-274 - Signed

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION APPROVING A LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH 1505 PONCE SPE, LLC FOR THE OPERATION OF A TEMPORARY CITY-OPERATED DOG PARK LOCATED ON THE SITE OF THE PROPOSED 1505 PONCE DE LEON PROJECT.

A motion was made by Commissioner Anderson, seconded by Commissioner Menendez, that this matter be adopted by Resolution Number 2022-274. The motion passed by the following vote.

Yeas: 4- Commissioner Menendez, Commissioner Anderson, Commissioner Fors,

Jr. and Vice Mayor Mena

Abstentions: 1 - Mayor Lago

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-273

G.-4.1. 22-4925

A Resolution reconsidering the vote previously taken in connection with Agenda Item G-4.

A motion was made by Commissioner Anderson, seconded by Commissioner Menendez, that this matter be adopted by Resolution Number 2022-273. The motion passed by the following vote.

Yeas: 4 - Vice Mayor Mena, Commissioner Menendez, Commissioner Anderson and Commissioner Fors, Jr.

Abstentions: 1 - Mayor Lago

City Clerk Item No. 36

H. BOARDS/COMMITTEES ITEMS

None

I. CITY MANAGER ITEMS

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-269

I.-1. Presentation regarding the Pininfarina Industrial Design for the new Coral Gables Smart City Poles.

<u>Attachments:</u> CoralGables SmartPolesIndustrialDesign

R-2022-269 - Signed

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION SELECTING OPTIONS TWO AND FIVE AND OPTION ONE AS AN ALTERNATIVE FOR THE INDUSTRIAL DESIGN OF THE SMART CITY POLE.

A motion was made by Vice Mayor Mena, seconded by Commissioner Anderson, that this matter be adopted by Resolution Number 2022-269. The motion passed by the following vote.

Yeas: 5 - Vice Mayor Mena, Commissioner Menendez, Commissioner Anderson, Commissioner Fors, Jr. and Mayor Lago

City Clerk Item No. 32

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-270

I.-2. <u>22-4855</u>

A Resolution of the City Commission authorizing the acceptance of grant funds in the amount of \$261,617 allocated to the Coral Gables Police Department as part of the Office of National Drug Control Policy (ONDCP) High Intensity Drug Trafficking Areas (HIDTA) Program Initiative; authorizing execution of the grant contract; and authorizing an amendment to the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Annual Budget to recognize the \$261,617 grant as revenue and to appropriate such funds to put toward the cost of the program.

Attachments: Resolution - HIDTA Award

Cover Memo - HIDTA Award

R-2022-270 - Signed

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT OF \$261,617 ON BEHALF OF THE CORAL GABLES POLICE DEPARTMENT AS PART OF THE OFFICE OF NATIONAL DRUG CONTROL POLICY (ONDCP) HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREAS (HIDTA) PROGRAM TO SUPPORT FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 OPERATIONS OF THE SOUTH FLORIDA MONEY LAUNDERING STRIKE FORCE; AND AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 ANNUAL BUDGET TO RECOGNIZE THE \$261,617 GRANT AS REVENUE AND TO APPROPRIATE SUCH FUNDS TO PUT TOWARD THE COST OF THE PROGRAM.

A motion was made by Vice Mayor Mena, seconded by Commissioner Menendez, that this matter be adopted by Resolution Number 2022-270. The motion passed by the following vote.

Yeas: 5 - Commissioner Menendez, Commissioner Anderson, Commissioner Fors, Jr., Vice Mayor Mena and Mayor Lago

City Clerk Item No. 33

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-271

I.-3. <u>22-4856</u>

A Resolution of the City Commission authorizing the acceptance of a \$392,361, three-year traffic technology grant, as well as the execution of the respective grant contract, and authorizing an Amendment to the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Annual Budget to recognize the year one amount of \$130,787 as revenue and to appropriate such funds to put toward the cost of the program.

Attachments: Cover Memo - ARPA-E Subaward

Resolution - ARPA-E Subaward

R-2022-271 - Signed

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION **AUTHORIZING** THE ACCEPTANCE OF Α \$392,361, THREE-YEAR **TRAFFIC** TECHNOLOGY GRANT, AS WELL AS THE EXECUTION OF THE RESPECTIVE GRANT CONTRACT, AND AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 ANNUAL BUDGET TO RECOGNIZE THE YEAR ONE AMOUNT OF \$130,787 AS REVENUE AND TO APPROPRIATE SUCH FUNDS TO PUT TOWARD THE COST OF THE PROGRAM.

A motion was made by Vice Mayor Mena, seconded by Commissioner Anderson, that this matter be adopted by Resolution Number 2022-271. The motion passed by the following vote.

Yeas: 5 - Commissioner Anderson, Commissioner Fors, Jr., Vice Mayor Mena, Commissioner Menendez and Mayor Lago

City Clerk Item No. 34

J. CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS

None

City Clerk Item No. 37

K. CITY CLERK ITEMS

None

City Clerk Item No. 38

L. DISCUSSION ITEMS

Mayor Lago: We are going to do a few housekeeping issues. Number one, can we have the results for the Pumpkin Carving Festivities.

Ms. Lopez: Good morning once again. So, thank you to all of the departments and divisions that participated this year. I always say that every year they get bigger and bigger in the construction, but the winner of this year's which is the Seventh Annual

Great Employee Pumpkin Contest is pumpkin number 3, City Attorney's Office.

[Applause]

Mayor Lago: Congratulations.

City Attorney Ramos: It's all Gus, it's all Gus. We can take no credit.

Mayor Lago: You want to put the theme music on and let's see the pumpkin in its full glory.

Ms. Lopez: While Gus gets the music going, thank you to the Adult Activity Center, Venetian Pool and Economic Development who also participated.

[Music Playing]

Vice Mayor Mena: The Mayor's play list (laughter)

Mayor Lago: Before you leave, can we talk about two quick items which were going to be items that I was going to discuss under Mayor's Comments. First off, I want to congratulate you, along with our Public Works team, Solanch, our Solid Waste Department, Matt Anderson, am I forgetting anybody else in regard to the success this weekend. We had over 375,000 pounds of hazardous waste this weekend.

Mr. Anderson: We had 425 cars pass through the event in the three hours. I know Commissioner Anderson passed through; Commissioner Fors joined us at the event. That's like our average turnout right now. I just started getting the numbers back in. We collected over 10,000 pounds of electronic waste. I'm still waiting for the household hazardous waste, but by the time I get those numbers back, over the last seven years, we've collected and diverted out of the landfill over 400,000 pounds of hazardous waste, electronic waste, clothing. We also did donations, Mayor, that you were leading up for Hurricane Ian, so our Fire Department was out there collecting. On behalf of that effort, our partners at Camillus House where the clothing gets donated to them and obviously our E-waste, household hazardous waste and paper shredding. It continues to be a staple in this community as far as the events, the feedback that we receive from the attendees has been amazing. They are always looking forward to the next event. We received a lot of compliments and the next event that will be taking place Earth Day 2023, which is April 22, 2023, in the City Hall parking lot.

Ms. Lopez: I know that Camillus House, we got their weights back also, they collected around 2,400 pounds of clothing, including several suits which they said that they were in need of, so they were very grateful for that. Thank you to our Fire

Cadets that were out there helping with the collection of the donations for Hurricane Ian relief, and they were helping at Camillus House too, and Kelly and everyone from Police was out there helping us direct traffic and sponsoring the shredding, the paper shredding.

Mr. Anderson: I also wanted to mention too, the Growing Place, the school next door. They actually did a collection last week and their elementary school collected all the clothes that were donated from the elementary school and Marlin Ebbert, the Chair of the Sustainability Board and I went over on Friday, spoke with the students, which was amazing and received all that clothing that they donated, and it was given to Camillus House. So, thank you again for their support as well.

Mayor Lago: Great work, as always, and the event continues to grow and like you said, it's a staple in this community and a lot of other communities called me, all the Mayors have said, listen, you guys are the envy of all other cities in regard to this effort that you are doing. So, thank you to both of you and to our Solid Waste Department, Public Works Department. Did I forget anybody else?

Mr. Anderson: Police - Police provided support for traffic. We ended up causing a traffic jam.

Ms. Lopez: We had Economic Development out there.

Mr. Anderson: Belkys was out there.

Mayor Lago: I just want to make sure we say thank you to everybody, because again, we go out there on a Saturday and give up of your own time, it's a team effort. So, thank you.

Mr. Anderson: Absolutely.

Mayor Lago: Thank you so much. Another discussion. Talk a little bit about what's happening in downtown in regard to the next cleanup effort.

Ms. Lopez: Yes. So, we have our next downtown community cleanup has been scheduled for Monday, November 7th at 5 o'clock. We will once again be meeting at the Chamber of Commerce office over at Alhambra. Registration is live up on our website and our community calendar, as well, and we will be starting to promote it on E-NEWS and social media, these two coming weeks leading up to the event.

Mayor Lago: So, let's work together with my office, so we can give some sort of cash prize again.

Ms. Lopez: Than you Mayor.

Mayor Lago: To incentivize people to really join us.

Ms. Lopez: Thank you so much.

Mayor Lago: We'll figure out exactly what we give, but we'll have some money available from my personal donation before people start talking about, we don't give money out, we don't have that type of budget here in the city, so we give personal donations. All my colleagues do for a litany of different charities. So, we'll do something nice. Okay. Thank you.

Ms. Lopez: Thank you so much.

Mayor Lago: Thank you to both of you, great work. I want to mention a few quick items. I have a Town Hall meeting that I welcome all my colleagues and any employees who would like to attend, to please join us, November 2nd at 6 p.m. We are going to have Senator Ileana Garcia, who did an incredible job this year in regard to appropriations. She'll be joining us there and talking about state issues. We are also having a Solid Waste Sunshine Meeting, October 27th, between 5 and 7 p.m. Staff has been working very hard on a presentation that will be very detailed, current state of our Solid Waste Department, options, opportunities, new technology, more of an educational experience than anything having an open dialogue on what the Commission - let's see how we can continue to offer better services and be more sustainable and be really the City Beautiful moving forward. Besides that, I spoke to the Manager and our staff yesterday. I've called for our Sunshine meeting to discuss executive benefits and the conversation that we've been having for some time and salaries. The City Manager told us that we will be proceeding forward with a meeting on November 10th, is what we are trying to schedule.

City Manager Iglesias: After the...

Mayor Lago: After our next Commission meeting.

City Manager Iglesias: An Executive Session.

Mayor Lago: So, are we having it on the 9th or the 10th?

City Manager Iglesias: We are scheduling now Mayor.

Mayor Lago: So, I just want to make sure that we can get a date by the next 24 hours, so that we can start properly notifying any interested parties who wanted to attend that meeting to be present.

Commissioner Anderson: Would that be a 5 p.m. meeting?

Mayor Lago: Yes, it would be a 5 p.m., we called for a 5 p.m. meeting, along with the solid waste discussion is a 5 p.m. meeting. All these meetings that are important in nature are 5 p.m. meetings. I have two remaining items. I'd like to see if I can get a picture up for the first item.

Vice Mayor Mena: Can I ask you a quick question on the last item?

Mayor Lago: Yes.

Vice Mayor Mena: Is there any reason that we can't just each be brought up to speed on whatever it is staff wants to communicate to us. My general understanding is that this was done pursuant to a compensation plan that was approved by this Commission pursuant to the prior City Manager's instructions and request, and then, if one of us has an actual question or concern about something in there, bring it to the Commission at a Commission meeting. Like I appreciate the idea of a Sunshine meeting, and I'm happy to have a discussion in the open at a Commission meeting. I guess my question is, what are we looking to do at the Sunshine meeting?

Mayor Lago: I think there are a lot of questions and then again, there's a lot of misinformation, something that has been brought up by a resident before. There's a continued effort to mislead and you have certain residents in this community that has a lot of questions and I want to make sure like you always do, that we be as transparent as possible and have this conversation in the open air, if there are any issues or any questions, we can do it. The county uses a little bit of a different format that we don't. The information is accessible, readily accessible through the budget. The county, for example, has all salaries and all compensation and all information of employee's salaries online on the website. You can literally see it; you can click, and you can see it. The purpose of the meeting to me was, there is a snowball effect, and it happens here very, very quickly, based on what one or two individuals say, and before you know it. I just got one right now, literally a text message that I can show you from a resident saying, pleading and begging stop the discussion on solid waste and garbage pits. I can't remove my trash pit. I said, where did you get the impression that I was going to remove your pit. Where did you get that impression? We are going to have a conversation about how the city can be better and more beautiful and how we can do things incentivizing people to move in a different direction. So, there's already, there's an effort to curtail these discussions by having misinformation and by misleading people. So, my point is that we have it on the public record, we have a discussion, and we move forward based on that discussion. And we can also take some sort of action or give the Manager direction as a team.

Commissioner Anderson: I think it's important to have a transparent discussion, because it does avoid the rumor-mill that can get rolling. If we want to be transparent, we need to be able to do this in the Sunshine.

Vice Mayor Mena: Commission meetings are in the Sunshine as well. So, I'm just saying, a) we gave instruction as a Commission when we approved the compensation plan, let's start there; b) the increases that have been discussed were, as far as I know, and if somebody has different information we can discuss it at the meeting, consistent with the approved plan approved by this Commission in the Sunshine. It's also in the budget, approved by this Commission. So, the idea that this was done not in the Sunshine a) is not true; b) I'm happy to have all the transparency in the world. Let's talk about it. My only question was, we can be informed by staff and if somebody wants to come out and say that they have a problem with one of the decisions, then they should ask for some sort of change. If we are being honest, I think that the Sunshine meeting has a potential to turn into a bit of a spectacle, and I'm not really clear on if we need an entire Sunshine meeting dedicated to a decision that's consistent with a compensation plan that this Commission approved. I'm happy to put all the information in the Sunshine and talk about it, but - you want to do a Sunshine meeting, I'll be there, but I'm just asking if it's absolutely necessary, if it can be part of a Commission item.

Mayor Lago: Listen, it could be part of the Commission, without a problem.

Vice Mayor Mena: In the Sunshine.

Mayor Lago: I don't have a problem, but the issue its already a spectacle, because you have entities and you have individuals in this community sending text messages to tens of thousands of people trying to intimidate and impose their will, so this Commission moves in a direction, which in my opinion, I don't see this Commission moving in that direction. You see a litany of other things that are happening, things that are being said that are incorrect, because I've talked to several employees to ask them in regard to, did they receive the magnitude of the benefits that are being...and there was another case. And also again, we have to be very careful when people are trying to manipulate the discussion for their own personal benefit. The best way to curtail that type of behavior is to have the conversation in the Sunshine, that's why I move in that direction, because I don't know any other way to address it, because it's the constant barrage of misinformation which has put us in a position where we have to address it.

City Manager Iglesias: And Mayor, if I may say, we were planning on having a meeting with all of you individually before that Sunshine meeting and before the next Commission meeting, to properly show you where we are as far as compensation. However, one has to be living in a vacuum not to realize that there has been an issue

as hiring nationwide. Finding people is extremely difficult. I have been almost 15 months trying to find a project manager and I can't do it. So, some of these things, I don't know why they come up, because you have to be living in an actual vacuum not to realize that this is something nationwide, this is not something that's just inherently a problem with Coral Gables. So, we intend to have an individual meeting with all of you to explain this whole situation and I would like to do it before our Executive Session at the end of the November 9th meeting.

Vice Mayor Mena: And just for the sake of clarity and not to mince words. The reason it's been brought up now is because the Fire Union is in the middle of negotiations with us relating to their collective bargaining agreement and this is a tactic that's being deployed to apply pressure to that negotiation. That's the reality of it. Anybody that wants to deny that I think is not being honest about what's going on, when entities go out of their way to publish the information when they have a coordinated animation on social media relating to the story within days, it's pretty obvious that what's going on here. So, if you want to have a Sunshine meeting and if our friend Mr. McCallister wants to come again from the county and hurl insults at the Mayor and at this Commission about public safety and make another spectacle out of that, let's do it, but I think at some point you do it to the detriment of your own staff and I think at some point you have to be honest about the impact it has on morale in the city, and I think we just have to be careful about continuing to add fuel to the fire instead of just moving forward and doing what we need to do on the votes that we'll be taking and the decisions we'll be making visa vie those negotiations, which I'm confident we will do.

Commissioner Fors: Can I add something? I think the Fire Union there's no doubt about it that they believe that this conversation regarding the executive packages is relevant to their ongoing and lengthy negotiations with respect to the collective bargaining agreement. The only thing that I disagree with is that they are certainly relevant to them, but if I remember correctly, the first person to discuss the compensation increases that came out in the budget was Maria Cruz during public comment, thereafter a blog wrote about it, and then without a doubt the Fire Union has brought that into their negotiation and their leverage, whether that's something that they feel is good for their strategy or not, that's up to them to make those decisions. But it was the resident Maria Cruz who first brought it up. Separate and apart from that, just so I'm clear, when you say Executive Session, we are talking about the Shade Session, right.

City Manager Iglesias: Shade Session for the fire contract.

Commissioner Fors: And that's going to be the day of...

Vice Mayor Mena: The 9th.

Commissioner Fors: The 9th of the meeting.

City Manager Iglesias: After the Commission meeting.

Commissioner Fors: We are trying to do the Sunshine meeting before or after that?

Vice Mayor Mena: After that.

City Manager Iglesias: Because we would like to meet with all of you individually at a Shade Session, then we can have the Sunshine meeting after that. I need to meet with all of you individually and that gives me time to do so.

Mayor Lago: So, I want to also put something on the record and then we'll step onto, excuse me, Commissioner Menendez has a few comments. Again, I've spoken to many, many firefighters and I want to speak on behalf of the Commission, if my colleagues have a different opinion, please feel free. We are incredibly proud, incredibly proud to have you working for the city. We are blessed to have you working for the city. You are an integral part of this community, and many have come and talked to me about their concerns in regard to the approach by Mr. David Perez and the unions. This is not an issue against the firefighters. We are in the process of negotiations. Mr. David Perez took it upon himself to politicize these negotiations by sending tens of thousands of text messages, spreading false rumors, being in concert with a blog that also has spread false rumors, false information, excuse me, but I want people to understand that this Commission stands proudly with the men and women of the Fire Department. We appreciate your efforts, your leadership. Every single time that you go to someone's home, or their business and you assist, we are beyond grateful, and I have listened to many of you. I got stopped yesterday evening when I was leaving from a meeting in downtown by one of the firefighters who came up to me to talk to me about the issue and was very adamant on how disappointed they are with Mr. Perez and the route that he has decided to take. I want to be clear with you, in the most respectful way, we will not be intimidated. We will do what's in the best interest of the city and keep our promises to the police and firefighters, and to echo the sentiments of the Vice Mayor with Mr. Billy McCallister, there is no room for that type of discourse here in the city. It is disrespectful to our employees, and it demoralizes our employees. For him to come here and emasculate our Fire Department the way that he did, was shameful, and I will not stand for it. So, moving forward, I look forward to having these conversations in the Sunshine, because I think they are critically important to really putting this to rest. This is a very difficult job market, very difficult job market, but we must always remember, just like I remember everyday as the Mayor what a privilege it is to work and serve in this community. It is a true privilege to work and serve in this community. Commissioner Menendez.

Vice Mayor Mena: I agree with everything you just said.

Commissioner Menendez: Thank you Mayor. My thoughts. I honestly believe that solutions can, solutions have, and solutions will be found here on the dais, among the members of the Commission, with the support of the administration, with the input of the community. Solutions, final determinations, final solutions, action taken is not going to be handled outside City Hall, they'll be here. It will involve everyone. As the Manager said, it doesn't have to be Coral Gables, just pick up the newspaper; private industry, major corporations are having a difficult time keeping employees. It's a competitive environment between one business and another business to draw workers, draw employees. Coral Gables is not different than any other organization or entity in that situation. So, I personally, as a resident, as a person, if I see that employees have the opportunity to have their salary go up some, get better benefits, I'm supportive of them. I would like to see more benefits spread out and I want to make sure everybody is well taken care of going forward. However, I think what was alluded to a little while ago, and I'm not going to point fingers at anyone group or anyone individual. We are entering into an interesting cycle that happens sometimes every two years in Coral Gables and sometimes happens every four years in Coral Gables. All you have to do is go back two and-a-half years when we were talking about Miracle Mile and the rezoning, and those meetings were so unlike the tradition of Coral Gables. People lost their cool, and I don't want the city, the Commission, or residents be drawn into a food fight, because that's what some people would like us to go into, a food fight, because some people, small minority do their best work in a food fight environment and that's not Coral Gables. So, I think there's a solution with regards to the salaries and the increases and the benefits going forward. Something as simple as any time that there is going to be a large-scale increase in benefits and salaries, there should be perhaps a separate memo that is circulated to the Commission so that it sort of stands out and if there are any questions they can be addressed. Something as simple as that. However, the structure of the Sunshine meeting, we have to manage it well, we have to put parameters there, because our community has been coming together and I really don't want the next few months for our community to be torn apart, because there's some people here and I'm not talking about in this building, that would like nothing better than to have chaos and a food fight happen, because it's not good for our community, it's not good for our residents, it's not good for our city. So, I think we have to be smart moving forward.

Commissioner Fors: I have a couple of things to add. First, I think one mistake that's made up here frequently is, sort of taking a big issue and sometimes a controversial issue and trying to personify it by finding boogie men or boogie women to point their finger at. I think what we are discussing here is a larger issue of a collective bargaining negotiation that's been going on for a while, and I think its counter-productive to sort of try to create or find or point to villains in that process and name people by name, especially when they are not here. Secondly, we can tell stories about having run into

City of Coral Gables Page 28

firefighters and the firefighter saying that they don't like what approach is being taken and suggesting that that firefighter that he ran into is happy with it, but let's not forget, we can't deny we are dealing with the fact here, that the Fire Union, I'm talking about the Fire Union because it's their collective bargaining negotiation that's pending, has been presented with the city's last offer and a majority of them rejected. So, I don't think this is a situation where somebody is going rouge and the majority of the union doesn't agree with them. They voted on this, and they rejected it and that's part of the negotiation process. I'm sure they'll be more discussions, but a vote has been taken on this and the majority of firefighters have rejected it. Third, I've been the recipient of a lot of those text messages too. I don't say I agree with that strategy and tactic. It is a way of disseminating information, but I also don't think you can put back all on the Fire Union if you can at all. First, we don't know for sure it was the Fire Union, but even if it was, some of those texts have dealt with complaints by the Police Union regarding their current compensation and by the motor pool, regarding their compensation. So, if we're going to talk about text messages being sent, we can't assign all that to the Fire Union. We have several departments and several trades in the city who are leveraging these or levying these complaints at this time. That being said, I have nothing further.

Commissioner Anderson: I have a few comments.

Mayor Lago: May I respond. Again, we can act like nothing is happening, but we all receive text messages in this community, and they were all meant to sway and intimidate and push the Commission to provide further incentives and a better offer than what we offered to the firefighters. It's simple. No one on this Commission is going to be intimidated Nobody is going to better an offer based on a few thousand text messages that are sent, because not one resident called me. I don't know if you received any residents calls that said, hey Vince, you better do something, because they are going to keep sending those text messages. And yes, Commissioner Fors, it was the firefighters. We all know it was the firefighters, both locally and at the county in concert to effectuate change on two issues: number one, annexation; number two, the issue of the contract. You bring up the police officers. The police officers were provided a contract which they accepted and it's my understanding, correct me if I'm wrong, Mr. Manager, Raquel is here, they are still currently valid, correct.

City Manager Iglesias: Yes, this year.

Mayor Lago: For another...

City Manager Iglesias: This year.

Mayor Lago: For this year. So, they are not out of contract and it's my understanding that the moment that we finalize our negotiations with the firefighters, we will be

moving briskly, immediately to start negotiations with the police officers.

City Manager Iglesias: That is correct Mayor.

Mayor Lago: I don't want to get into too many details, but everybody here on this Commission knows that we made an offer to the police officers, and we were in lockstep in offering the firefighters the same offer, and that has changed. So, without getting into too many discussions that were mentioned in the Shade meeting out of respect for the negotiations, I do not want to move in the direction that certain people have in this community where they start using those tactics, intimidation and pushing and rumors and false information in an attempt to somehow, someway sway us to say, okay, forget about it, throw the towel in and just give them what they want. That's not the way things work in the real world. They don't. And to say it was the motor pool, I know it wasn't the motor pool, because the motor pool doesn't work that way; and I know that none of the other employees will conduct themselves here. To say that it was police, is an insult also. So, again, moving forward, we have an offer on the table, we have a Shade meeting which will happen on the 9th, I'm looking forward to that meeting, and putting this behind us, taking a necessary action, moving forward and the moment that we resolve the pension negotiations, excuse me, the discussions and negotiations with the firefighters, we will move onto the police immediately and we've been very clear that that is our stance and police is well aware of that, because they understand it and they want to move expeditiously also. Again, the intent of my conversation here was not to even bring this up, we are moving on. We are moving on from it; we are going to address it on the 9th. I just hope we're all ready to really negotiate and play ball and get through this and not politicize this process anymore. This should be handled the way business terms are handled, sitting down in a room and having a conversation.

Commissioner Anderson: Mayor.

Commissioner Fors: I have to say something because I've been - I'm sorry Commissioner.

Commissioner Anderson: You know you do this all the time.

Commissioner Fors: Give me a second.

Mayor Lago: Can I have Commissioner Anderson - Commissioner Anderson go ahead, please.

Commissioner Anderson: I'd like to dovetail a couple of comments that were offered, Commissioner Menendez as well. I'd like to make decisions not in a vacuum but being able to have better information. I've had employees privately before, you always research what's out there in the industry; what is your competition to be able to get positions filled, and we need to be able to have that type of information for the entire employee base in order to make intelligent decisions. We do it for our Capital Improvement projects, we weigh which to prioritize, which ones we need to move forward first. We don't always agree with staff on that, we've pushed the Fire Station ahead from the recommendation that the staff had made, because we know it's a life safety issue. So, I'm looking forward to the Sunshine meeting. The memo idea that Commissioner Menendez had, I think is exactly some of the process so that we are better informed and I think the public will be better informed, instead of hearing information out of context that distorts what the real picture is, so they understand what the competition is out there and other industries and what the wages are out there and other industries that are competing with us, then what seems to be unreasonable in a vacuum is ultimately reasonably. So, I'm looking forward to the Sunshine meeting and let's have a robust discussion.

City Manager Iglesias: Just to be clear, we haven't done anything that has not been approved by this Commission.

Commissioner Anderson: I understand. Just more detail in the memo, more comparisons, the research that you're aware of in making some of the recommendations that have been made.

Mayor Lago: So, moving on. Mr. Clerk, can we have my photo up, please.

Commissioner Fors: I have one more comment to make.

Mayor Lago: You can make them during your time after I'm done with my comments. This is a simple sculpture, beautiful in nature. Its sitting in front of Hillstones for the past five, six, seven years. We talk about ADA as an issue here in the community and we talk about beautifying our street. If you look around you, you have a bench, you have two garbage cans, you have a traffic box, and you also have a sculpture. I'm currently working with my team, Public Works, and the county to see what we can do about those traffic boxes. I think technology has advanced significantly where we could potentially even make them smaller. We contacted FPL, it's not FPL, that is Traffic Light Management, my understanding, and Mr. Cueto is helping us in the county. We are going to hopefully addressing that issue with the ACM and the City Manager and our Public Works team to see if we can find some sort of solution for that. At a minimum, at least reduce them in size and tuck them away somewhere where they are not in the middle there. What I'm asking for support from my colleagues on the Commission is, I would like to open up and move that sculpture to maybe a park or move it somewhere, if it's possible. Come in Solanch, please, you are always welcome.

Ms. Lopez: Solanch, City Manager's office and Belkys is here with me as well. So, this one and the others along Miracle Mile are privately owned. We had allowed them as a city to stay out there after the Venetian Pole exhibit. We've already, through Economic Development and Historic, communicated with the owners and we are working with them because they are aware that they need to now be moved. So that's already in the process, because they are privately owned.

Mayor Lago: So, what I would like to do, I think there would be a hindrance to moving them because of the weight and the significance. They've got to rent a truck. Could we facilitate maybe moving them with our forces, because I've been, this is not staff, this is - we've been getting to the bottom of the ownership and all the process in place. I would love to see those moved to kind of open that walkway up and give it a little more breathing room. It could really accentuate the beauty of the corridor.

Economic Development Director Perez: Mayor, I believe the letters will be going out. We have identified all the owners already. It's not as difficult as it seems, because the pole is attached from the concrete base, so when they take it, they will only be taking the pole.

Ms. Lopez: The base is ours.

Economic Development Director Perez: Yes, the base is ours, and will be taken to 72nd. However...

Vice Mayor Mena: The base is ours?

Economic Development Director Perez: Yes. This concrete base is ours, so it was made for - so what we could do is, we could find a solution where we can remove them all now, put them in a certain location, have the business or the owner pick it up from a certain location.

Mayor Lago: So that's what I'd like to do, especially getting into the holiday season. This is part of the plan of cleaning the streets, the facades, the beautification of the walls that are in construction. I really think that there are positive benefits to this. I don't know how my colleagues feel about it, but I'd like to see if maybe we could do it, and maybe store it at 72nd Avenue. They can come and pick it up there, they can be notified. Anybody have any concerns with that?

City Manager Iglesias: Even if the owner allows us to do that, we have no issue doing that.

Mayor Lago: Do you need a resolution to move this forward?

Ms. Lopez: I think we need to reach out to the owners and get their okay to move them.

Vice Mayor Mena: It's on our public right-of-way.

Mayor Lago: It's on our public right-of-way, so.

City Manager Iglesias: We'd like to work with the owners also, but it is on our public right-of-way so we can move them whenever we wish.

Mayor Lago: I'm going to pass the gavel. I'm going to make a motion to have those removed and placed on 72nd Avenue and have the owners notified that they can come pick up their Venetian Poles there.

City Attorney Ramos: When those were put in our right-of-way, what was the agreement with those owners?

Ms. Lopez: That we would allow them to keep them there.

City Manager Iglesias: I think we need to look at that.

City Attorney Ramos: When we have an encroachment agreement, we say we can remove it at any time. Did it have that language?

City Manager Iglesias: I am not sure. That was done five or six - I don't know.

Vice Mayor Mena: Assuming that's the case, I think if there's a problem, come back and tell us.

City Attorney Ramos: I just want to make sure, because I don't want to be moving private property.

City Manager Iglesias: If there is no encroachment agreement, then we can move forward and store them at 72nd Avenue, and they can do with them as the owners wish at that point.

Mayor Lago: So, if there is an encroachment agreement, they are there forever?

City Attorney Ramos: No, it depends. Most encroachment agreements say that the city can move them at any time, so that's a question. What's the language in the agreement?

Mayor Lago: So, what I would like to do is, while you are researching that. I don't want to wait another month. So, I made a motion, if there are no issues, we can move it forward. Mr. Clerk.

City Clerk Urquia: All in favor.

All: Aye.

City Clerk Urquia: Thank you.

Mayor Lago: Thank you. Great work Belkys. Great work Solanch. Thank you so much. I have one more item that I'd like to put up photo. So, these are multiple photos. So, this is on Laguna, right in front of Artigiano. These are sidewalks that I've been working with Deena and our Public Works Department. So, this is a tree that was probably cut down five years ago and was never replaced. After five years its growing back, see the little leaves there. I think if we wait maybe 50 years, the tree will be back. I'm being facetious. My point is that this has been like this for a long time, and that whole street has been completely and utterly abandoned and not been maintained. Next photo. The sidewalks are dirty, cracked, broken. This is in Merrick Park, by the way. Next photo. You can see the growth - the next photo. The grates that go around are either missing, they've been stolen, and if you look closely, I know it's a stubbing hazard, because I stubbed my toe on the grate. My concern is that somebody will get hurt, fall and potentially really injury themselves. Next photo same issue. Next photo. You'll see my bigger concern. This is happening throughout. These are grates that are elevated two and three inches off the ground. They are a major tripping hazard. I've had residents come and talk to me and say, listen, I've tripped on this grate. What can we do?

Commissioner Anderson: I don't think they are needed.

Mayor Lago: And this is another one. So, all the way to Neiman Marcus it literally is an issue; the grates are overgrown, sidewalks are cracked. At least we should trim those saplings. You call it saplings, right Deena, the overgrowth.

Ms. Bell: Deena Bell, Greenspace Management. These are smokes that were there probably pre-Merrick Park, we've done site walk through. Identified they are really overgrowing their locations. They've popped up curbs; they've popped up tree grates. So, I think it's time we have to have a project to fix the whole infrastructure of the street.

Mayor Lago: I think that we have a development that's coming, supposedly across, literally adjacent to this property, on the building that abuts Artigiano and it faces Neiman Marcus, so they are probably going to have to fix all those curbs. But I

would at least like to trim the trees while we wait for that and maybe remove some of those grates and sand down so that that metal isn't like a potential tripping hazard, while we wait for that development to come into place which is going to have to replace all those sidewalks anyway, because it's a pretty significant development.

Public Works Director Diaz: We'll double-check the specific development, maybe we can spruce the area up. Unfortunately, we are talking about this specific area and ultimately in order to fix those sidewalks, we believe that those trees have to go.

Commissioner Anderson: Can't you just eliminate some of the cement there and add some landscaping.

Public Works Director Diaz: We looked at that. Some of those roots are above the curb, they are lifting the curb from the pavement in some areas. The roots are mangled with some of the metal frames around it. So, it would be very, very difficult.

Commissioner Anderson: You can cut those roots. You know oaks put roots down.

Mayor Lago: I don't want to cut down trees down just to cut them down. That's a perfectly healthy tree. What I would do there is try to find another solution instead of cutting the tree down. I know that you guys are the experts, but there has to be some sort of other solution instead of cutting those trees down.

Public Works Director Diaz: We can look into it a little further.

Mayor Lago: Yes, it would be nice.

City Manager Iglesias: We would look at that, see if we can save the trees.

Ms. Bell: We'll look at them on a tree-by-tree basis. I did a walk-through, and there are, I don't know, 15 or 20 of them through the whole corridor, so we'll have to address them on a tree-to-tree basis.

City Manager Iglesias: One of the issues, Mayor, is we have 41,000 trees in the right-of-way, so this is a big issue, lifting up sidewalks, lifting up grates throughout the city. It's really a continuous maintenance issue, and it can be quite costly because of the fact that we do have those Tree City U.S.A. city, and when you have 41,000 trees in the right-if-way there's a lot of maintenance. So, we'll be happy to look at that and see how we can save the tree. It's a nice tree.

Mayor Lago: I think if you go there, let's say if you go there mid-day and you experience the fact that there is great shade there, and when there is that much concrete and there is that much asphalt, it's just nice to be able to have some sort of

canopy there to protect the residents and also the businesses.

City Manager Iglesias: In the future, we need to look at our sidewalk program, because the sidewalk program is really getting hurt by the fact that there is so much maintenance, lifting and so forth, so it hurts the new sidewalk, and you have to go back and replace existing sidewalks that has been lifted and has been damaged by the trees. So, I think we are going to - I think in the following year's budget, I think we are going to take a look at that and see what we can do as far as looking at maybe different maintenance budget from a new sidewalk budget, because of the effects of the trees on the overall one sidewalk, sidewalk budget that we have, Mayor.

Mayor Lago: Thank you.

Commissioner Anderson: We didn't have the quality of staff at a certain point that understood that you need a ten-foot space for the tree, and I think if we just give the tree more space, number one, no one's going to be walking that close to the tree trunk and you can put some nice landscaping under there.

Ms. Bell: It's just the tree root ball space is very small; you know the live oak is a large species, so the roots are actually circling themselves now and the trees are becoming stunted so not many of them are in good health. So, we'll study them on a tree-to-tree basis.

Commissioner Anderson: Well, we did that on Miracle Mile, some of them had to go, because they were in poor health, but others were saved, and we just developed the design around it and gave them more root space.

City Manager Iglesias: That was done, yes. That was done through structural soil, there's also structural support. Down there we have anchors holding the tree down; structural soil was used, that was a very expensive design.

Mayor Lago: Well, thank you. I'd like to see something in the near future brought to us and maybe we can work on that development, Oscar Roger is the developer.

Public Works Director Diaz: We'll double-check the details.

Mayor Lago: I think you can speak to the attorney who happens to be here and he can give you a little bit of an idea, part of the concessions, so I'd like to see at a minimum, maybe we can even move some of the trees that are healthy that you deem appropriate that are in the way, if the sidewalk is too small maybe we can move them.

City Manager Iglesias: And also, Mayor, we have the covenants online now, so we can check the covenants the responsibility for it.

Mayor Lago: Commissioner Anderson, is there anything you would like to add before we adjourn.

Commissioner Anderson: On the chili cook-off.

Mayor Lago: Yes - come. I'm going. I'm going. Commissioner Menendez.

Commissioner Menendez: Good.

Mayor Lago: Anything else.

Commissioner Fors: I have a few things I'd like to add.

Mayor Lago: Commissioner Fors.

Commissioner Fors: First, I want to apologize to Commissioner Anderson for trying to speak ahead of you but understand that I felt that I needed to do it and I think we saw why a few moments ago. We are talking about a very important controversial issue that the Mayor does not want to continue talking about in the Sunshine. He'll often jump to you before I'm done discussing it, and if I don't try to jump in before you, then we move on to a little blue pole in front of Hillstone.

Commissioner Anderson: I had flagged the Mayor and again, this is not the first time this has happened between us, and you jumped ahead, especially on the fire issue. We will have our Shade meeting, we will have our Sunshine meeting, and we'll be able to be fully informed on all the issues.

Commissioner Fors: Well, I'm sorry for jumping ahead of you and its because he often employs these tactics with regard to the fire issue that's why its happened with regard to the fire issue, but I'm sorry, nonetheless. Secondly, I wanted to clarify something regarding the way my statement about the text messages were reframed, just want to make clear that I'm not accusing police and fire, sorry, police and the motor pool of sending any text messages, just to make that clear. I was only pointed out that the substance of some of these text messages and corresponding YouTube videos dealt with police compensation and the situation at the motor pool, they didn't all deal with fire. Third, I want to place on the record that I believe another practice, which is unproductive which deals with, in addition to trying to personify problems and identify boogie men or boogie women instead of taking the problem by the horns and discussing it as an issue that pertains to the whole city is, trying to accuse people of politicizing issues. Its not the first time or the last month or so that when the Mayor does not agree with one side of an argument, he'll say that he'll accuse the other side of politicizing it. In my opinion, claiming something is being politicized in and of itself

politicizes it. I think that's unproductive as well. I'm not going to go any further into the compensation of anybody, motor pool, fire or police, we are going to have meetings for that, but anyway you slice it, whether you agree with the tactics being employed or what tactics are being employed during these negotiations. At the end of the day, the buck stops with the Commission. At the end of the day, the city is the employer, and if your employees, if there is unrest among them, at the end of the day you're not doing your job of keeping a smooth high moral environment, you may not be, and you need to look in the mirror and ask yourself if you are approaching this the right way or not. That's all that I hope that we do during the next Sunshine meeting and Shade Session. I'm not saying that that's the case or not, but everybody remembers that at the end of the day what our employees do and how they feel whether we agree with it or not, or whether they are even justified in feeling or acting that way, ultimately is our problem and it needs to be resolved one way or another. I hope we can do that without truly politicizing it by naming people by name and by claiming that its being politicized. With that, I have no further comments.

Mayor Lago: How about I respond really quick. I look forward to having a conversation in our Shade Session to address the Fire Union and as I did last year, and I will do in the next month, I'll be having two meetings that I welcome all my colleagues to attend, which Commissioner Fors never attended and that was my meeting with all the employees in multiple different locations, not only here in City Hall, but in 72nd Avenue, to meet face to face without the Manager, without directors and executives, to face what their concerns are, what their issues are and how we can continue to work together. I also have a secondary meeting and I look forward to meeting with all the executives and the directors, like I did last year, to have a separate conversation in regard to what we're doing to push this city forward.

Commissioner Anderson: And you've Sunshined those, right.

Mayor Lago: I Sunshine those meetings and I welcome everybody, and just like I do every single Friday, when you face the music, meetings start at 2 o'clock and I get not only residents and business owners, but I get also employees who come to meet with me to discuss every single issue, and I welcome everyone, starting at 2 o'clock this Friday to come and see me. Vice Mayor, would you like to add anything else to the discussion?

Vice Mayor Mena: No. Thank you all for everything.

Commissioner Anderson: Thank you.

Mayor Lago: Meeting adjourned.

ADJOURNMENT

[Note for the Record: There being no further business on the Regular City Commission Meeting Agenda. The Commission of the City of Coral Gables adjourned its meeting at 11:48 a.m. The next Regular Meeting of the City Commission has been scheduled for Wednesday, November 9, 2022, beginning 9 a.m.]

BILLY Y. URQUIA

CITY CLERK